COLERAIN

Page 1 of 20

EST. 1794

Minutes

September 11, 2018
Opening of Meeting

Mr. Unger called the meeting to order at 6PM with all Board members present.

Executive Session 6:00 PM

Mr. Milz requested the Board conduct an executive session in accordance with Ohio
Revised Code §121.22(G)(8) to consider confidential information relating to specific
business strategy and to discuss negotiations with other political subdivisions respecting
requests for economic development assistance, §121.22(G)(1) to discuss employment and
compensation of public employees and §121.22(G)(3) to discuss pending and imminent
litigation with the Township law director.

Greg Insco made such motion and Dan Unger offered the second. No discussion and the
roll was called:

Yes - Dan Unger, Raj Rajagopal, Greg Insco
No - None

The Board returned from executive session at 6:33PM. All Board members were present.
Mr. Milz said there was nothing to report. The Board will take a short break.

The Board began regular business at 7:01PM. All Board members were present.

Pledge of Allegiance 7:00 PM
All recited the Pledge of Allegiance.

Meditation (Moment of Silence)

Mr. Unger asked everyone to join in a moment of silence. He asked everyone to remember
the events of 17 years ago today.

Fiscal Office — Approval of Minutes from August 28, 2018

Mrs. Hatlow requested the Board approve the August 28, 2018, meeting minutes.

Greg Insco made such motion and Raj Rajagopal offered the second. No discussion and
the roll was called:

Yes - Dan Unger, Raj Rajagopal, Greg Insco

No — None




Page 2 of 20

ninEE
COL

ERAIN

EST. 1794

Presentations

a. HCDC, Inc. Economic Development Presentation

Harry Blanton and Catherine Fitzgerald, of HCDC, offered a presentation on the work
they do to promote economic development in Hamilton County. A copy of the
presentation 1s Attachment 1 to these minutes.

Mr. Rajagopal said 13 years ago, he started his business in Colerain, which is now very
successful. He thanked them for their guidance and said it's amazing how they can
help build a business.

Mr. Unger said their value is they know the moving patts in the process.

Mr. Blanton said Colerain has a very professional staff and they enjoy working with

us.

b.  Years of Service Recognition

Chief Cook recognized Roger Sauerwein for his 45 years of service. He said Mr.
Sauerwein is the Department's longest serving employee.

Citizens Address: Questions Concerning Today’s Agenda

Brenda Ritchie said she calls the Township once a month for one house on her street of
nine homes. She said there was a refrigerator in the neighbort's driveway, which she said sat
there for three weeks and the zoning and police departments said they couldn't do
anything. She said the house is surrounded by junk, including a washing machine, tires,
ladders, garbage, bikes, etc. She said she wants to know how long she will have to deal with
this.

Mr. Unger said he will drive past.

Mr. Insco said he saw the photos and sent them to the department heads. He is waiting
for a response. It's a long, slow process, but we must follow the Ohio Revised Code.

Mr. Milz said this has been in Hamilton County Housing Court.

Dusty Rhodes, Hamilton County Auditor, said his office returned $167,000 to Colerain
from unspent real estate assessment funds. He said the Rep. Blessing told him we lost $2.6




-

Page 3 of 20

i i J

LERAIN

EST. 1794

million from the state's local government fund in the last eight years. He said he will keep
fighting to restore that, as it helps keeps local taxes down.

Mr. Unger thanked him for his diligence and his support of the Ohio Checkbook.

Dale Stalf is running for the 1st district Court of Appeals. He introduced himself and spoke
about his background.

Mike Parsons offered condolences to family of James Delosh. Mr. Unger said Mr. Delosh
is the indigent burial on the agenda today. Mr. Milz said that if a Township resident has no

money and no next of kin, the Township must take care of the cremation. Mr. Barbiere
said ORC provides this.

Mt. Milz said there is a new section on the agenda for the Board's consent on items which
fall under his authorization to approve contracts less than $7,500. He said we have had
eight indigent burials this year and that's high.

M. Parsons asked about approval for the gate. Mr. Milz said they will be closing gates at
Clippard Park, two entrances to park and both will have a gate

Mr. Parsons asked that if we have an indigent burial, do we have to take care of the
terminal cancer patient at Fireside Hotel?

Mr. Barbiere said the owner and the land contract both have good attorneys. We have
nothing to do with the seller and purchaser of the land contract They are trying to
negotiate an equitable solution.

Mr. Unger said this small investment now will yield tax monies in the future.

Sharon Sligar thanked Chief Denney for the police work on the walkway. It has been very
quiet. She spoke about the roadwork on Jackie's Drive and said their driveways are
blocked without notice. She asked about filling potholes.

Mr. Schwartzhoff asked her to send photos and addresses so he can have a look to do
more repair.

Jeff Brockhaus said he was here last year about approval of a zone change at 2499 Banning
Road. He said his business is a commercial cleaning contractor, with no retail activity. He
said the project has gone sideways. He said the staff didn't understand how he operates
and the nature of their business. He said there was no bait and switch.




T

COLERAIN

Page 4 of 20

EST. 1794

Mr. Milz said we applied zoning resolution to the plans and it didn't meet our code.
Mr. Unger said he will follow-up with him.

Tom O'Brien said he initiated a CSR, but has had no correspondence from Colerain, then
received a notice that it was closed. This was an impersonal form letter. He said the house
looks worse than when he started this process. He said the website is not user-friendly.

Mr. Milz said he took time during a Trustee meeting to explain the process.
Mr. Unger said he visited this area twice.

Mz. Milz said we 1400 complaints investigated this year. He said we will keep people up to
date on complaints via the website. Mrs. LeCount read the status updates from the
website. Mr. O'Brien said things are still out of wack and not in compliance.

Josephine Broach was not in attendance.

Linda Niece spoke about her concerns about Pippin Road from Northwest High School to
Civic Center Drive. She said the kids are walking on the side of the road, where there is no
sidewalk. Kids won't get out of the street and she doesn't want to have kids hurt. She said
they won't cross to walk on the sidewalk.

M. Insco said this is a county road. He said the school or the county will have to step-up
on this. We have many areas that are very unsafe but must be addressed by the proper
entities.

Chief Denney will have the resource officer make an announcement about this. He will
also ask the patrol officers to check on this.

Mr. Rajagopal said it's a very dangerous situation. He spoke to Engineer Hubbard and he
said they will make some progress on this issue.

Carrie Davis said the school district is taking advantage of the police department with the
traffic issues. She suggested the schools hire crossing guards. With the flooding this
weekend, it was very bad on Brynside. We have OSHA and soil issues going on. She
suggested on-line system be expanded to include other issues, like for the flooding.

Mr. Milz said this is possible today.




Page 5 of 20

COL

1

ERAIN

EST. 1794

Mr. Unger said these streets are having major reconstruction.

Keith Miller said he doesn't know whete to start and nothing has changed. He said Ritter's
cronies are still here.

Mr. Unger said we have competent department heads. He said the word is out that we're
trying to get the Township cleaned-up.

Mr. Miller said Rumpke will expand to the river and ruin the neighborhood.
Chris Henson introduced several members of the Coleraine Historical Society. She said the
Board will be asked to approve a flood marker pole at Heritage Park. She said the Society

will be donating the pole to the Parks Department.

Kathy Mohr spoke about the training center the Fire Department used in the past and
asked about its future.

Mr. Milz said we are working with the drug strike force to lease it.

Ms. Mohr said she made a public records request for the purchase order for the Brynside
sewer repair and was told there wasn't one.

Mr. Unger said there wouldn't be a purchase order for it.

Mr. Milz said it's part of the SCIP project, part of reconstruction the road.

Mr. Unger said it's a low dollar project.

Mr. Milz said there is a purchase order for the larger project.

Mer. Schwartzhoff said the contract has contingencies for items like this.

Ms. Mohr spoke about the police contract with Northgate Mall. She said on July 10, the
Board initiated a contract with Northgate Mall, but on July 24, they did pass a resolution, to
be effective July 25th. She said she has a list of officers working when didn't have a

contract.

Mr. Unger said we billed them for this. Mr. Milz said this speaks to the great relationship
with have with the Mall.




i

I T {T]]
COLERAIN

Page 6 of 20

EST. 1794

Stephanie Wright asked if HCDC is subcontractor. Mr. Rajagopal said it's a service offered
to the community and there is no contract with them and us. She asked about the dog
house purchase before the Board and why this is needed now. She thanked Peach Grove
Animal Hospital for their donation. She said the flood pole is fabulous and thanked M.
Shad. Regarding the Public Services position, she asked if this job was posted.

Mr. Milz said seasonal workers job posted in March, but we still have work to do.

Mrs. Wright spoke about the land use committee and said Pleasant Run Farms is not in
Colerain.

Mr. Unger said we spoke about this.

Mrs. Wright thanked those who applied for the committee.

Mrs. Wright spoke about the Banning Road corner.

Mr. Unger said this is part of the agreement with the school district.

Mt. Milz said the $26,000 will not be paid by the Township to construct the turn lane. We
are paying for the service to negotiate the right of way purchase.

Mrs. Wright said at the special meeting on June 26, 2018, a resolution was passed to loan
money to the CIC. She said Mr. Rajagopal was absent, but it was said this is time sensitive
with a need to move forward because the construction time frame is seasonal. She asked
why hasn't check been written yet.

Mr. Milz said the Fireside Motel sale is in legal disagreement.

Mr. Unger said it's better to have the funds in our accounts.

Mrs. Wright asked about the social media policy, Mr. Weckbach said this will be presented
to the Board in November or December.

Mrs. Wright said James Love was paid twice in August.
Bonita Sergent thanked the Police for their work on her street and asked about next steps.
SWAT Team in back yard. Thank for all the hard work. She asked about the next step.

She sad they are dealing with a known drug dealer.

Mr. Milz said the homeowner needs to go to court. A warrant has been issued for her

arrest.
Ms. Sergent spoke about the decision to close Jonrose. This won't work for safety of kids
going to new Struble Elementaty. She said there haven’t been physical altercations because

of the traffic.

Mzr. Insco said this was before his time.




Page 7 of 20

e iy

COLERAIN

EST. 1794

Mr. Unger said the building could have been built at the old Providence Hospital. Mr.
Insco said the school board knows they have an issue.

Administrative Reports

FIRE & EMS DEPARTMENT

Chief Cook presented the emergency incident activity for August 2018:

Total Incidents

Ems Incidents: 755 [Year To Date (Ytd): 5,607]

[ Dispatched as advanced life support: 595
Dispatched as basic life support: 160

Fire Incidents: 164 (Ytd: 1,162)

Fire (E.G., Building, Vehicle, Etc.): 14 (Ytd: 155)

Opverpressure, Rupture: 5 (Ytd: 19)

Hazardous Condition: 32 (Ytd: 197)

Service Call: 19 (Ytd: 134)

Good Intent: 52 (Ytd: 393)

False Alarm: 41 (Ytd: 271)

Special: 0 (Ytd: 0)

Weather Related: 1 (Ytd: 4)

Springfield Twp. Ems Contract Area: 25 (Ytd: 224)

Significant Incidents
Fires
Building Fire: Mon., Aug. 14, 2018 in the 6700 block of Schuster Ct.

Reported Fire Loss (Approximate): $76,601.00

Incident Response Time
Average response time for arrival of first unit (Minutes: Seconds): 05:15 (Ytd: 05:17)
First unit on-scene less than six-minutes percentage: 70.6% (Ytd: 69.33%)

Surplus Vehicle Liquidation

In July, the fleet maintenance division liquidated 15 various surplus fire, police and public
services vehicles by means of internet auction. Total revenue received from the sale to the
township was $43,595.51.

Chamber Of Commerce Appreciation Breakfast
Captain Christopher Hopkins was recognized with the department’s firefighter of the year
award during Chamber Of Commerce appreciation breakfast this morning. In Addition,




COL

Page 8 of 20

i

RAIN

EST. 1794

The Department Was Gifted With Five $50.00 Kroger Gift Cards (One For Each Fire
Station) From The Chamber For Recognition As The State Of Ohio’S Ems Agency Of
Year Awarded Farlier This Year.

POLICE DEPARTMENT

Chief Denney said the department responded to 4,086 calls for service in the month of
August.

* 237 vehicle crashes (33 with injuries)

* 60 hit/skips

* 283 traffic stops, 237 traffic citations

* 10 OVT arrests

* 227 false alarm calls (up from 189 in July)
* 62% of all calls within 5 minutes

° 226 atrests

* 30 new cases assigned to ciu

* 9 detective call-outs

Detective Mike Stockmeier was recognized as the 2018 Colerain Chamber Of Commerce
Officer Of The Year. Mike Has been an invaluable member of the investigative team and
has been the lead detective on several homicides and sexual assaults where the suspects
were sentenced to life without parole.

PLANNING & ZONING DEPARTMENT

Mrs. LeCount said we had 251 complaints opened in August. She said the Land Use
Committee will host its first meeting later this month. She said said they will host a public
meeting about sidewalks in October. She said they are also working on the Energy Plan.

PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT
Mt. Schwartzhoff said all 9 Road Routes have been swept with the new sweeper. Recycle
Day will be September 29 8am-2pm.

Mr. Rajagopal thanked him for his work on the Colerain Ave. beautification.

ADMINISTRATION

Mr. Wechbach offered an update on the Transparency Project initiatives. He said the Civic
Clerk agenda and minutes software is in use. He said staff is actively engaged with using
the budget software.

Mr. Milz said it was a great event with Chamber's fire and police recognition breakfast. He




r,.r;-iu-2 :

COLERAIN

EST. 1794

satd CMHA cut the ribbon on West Union Square, the project he is most proud of in his
career. He thanked Mr. Schwartzhoff and Mrs. Molter for their work on the Eyes of
Freedom traveling memorial visit. He said it demonstrates our appreciation of veterans. It
was a very moving event.

10. Public Hearings

Public Hearing: Zoning Case ZA2013-0003 Sanctuary Pointe - Major Modification
to a Preliminary Development Plan

Mrs. LeCount presented the staff report. She said staff recommends adoption of
Resolution approving a Major Modification to a Preliminary Development Plan subject
to the following conditions and vatiances:

Conditions:

1. That all conditions approved as part of case Colerain ZA20131-03 shall remain in
effect for the subject site including the approved landscape plan.

2. That a Major Modification to the Preliminary Development Plan be required for any
further development on the remaining vacant parcel.

Variance:
Section 7.4.6(A) - That the proposed development be permitted a2 maximum density of
17.5 beds per acre where 7 units or beds per acre is permitted.

Dan Unger made a motion to open the public hearing and Greg Insco offered the
second. No discussion and the roll was called:

Yes - Dan Unger, Raj Rajagopal, Greg Insco

No - None

No one wished to speak.

Dan Unger made a motion to close the public hearing and Greg Insco offered the
second. No discussion and the roll was called:

Yes - Dan Unger, Raj Rajagopal, Greg Insco

No - None

Dan Unger made such motion and Raj Rajagopal offered the second, to approve
Resolution 37-18, "Case No. ZA2013-0003, Sanctuary Pointe, Approval of a Major
Modification to a Preliminary Development Plan, Parcel No. 510-0021-0376." No
discussion and the roll was called:

Page g of 20




COLERAIN

11.

Page 10 of 20

EST. 1794

Yes - Dan Unger, Raj Rajagopal, Greg Insco
No - None

On August 2, 2018, The Hamilton County Regional Planning Commission
recommended unanimously for approval of the Major Modification of a Preliminary
Development Plan with conditions on the property known as Sanctuary Pointe
Nursing Facility located at 11501 Hamilton Avenue. This Major Modification was
requested by Chase KKohn with Next Up Investments 2, LLC and was heard before the
Colerain Township Zoning Commission on August 21, 2018 with approval with
conditions was recommended in a unanimous vote.

The decision made at tonight’s Public Hearing will be used as basis for Zoning
Commission review of another Preliminary Development Plan for future development
once submitted by the applicant.

New Business

Public Safety

a.  Motion to Accept Gift Card Donation (Fire)

Chef Cook recommended acceptance of a $50.00 Kroger gift card donation, from the
Northwest Local School District Transportation Office, in appreciation for services
provided during an emergency incident on August 9, 2018.

Dan Unger made such motion and Greg Insco offered the second. No discussion and
the roll was called:

Yes - Dan Unger, Raj Rajagopal, Greg Insco

No - None

b.  Motion Authorizing the Disposal of Surplus Vehicles (Fire)

Chief Cook recommended the adoption of a motion authorizing the disposal of nine
surplus vehicles per the recommendation of the Township's Fleet Manager. He said
the vehicles have been taken out of service for either mechanical or other issues that
would not allow the vehicle to operate in a safe manner, or no longer needed to do
Township business.

Greg Insco made such motion and Dan Unger offered the second. No discussion and
the roll was called:

Yes - Dan Unger, Raj Rajagopal, Greg Insco




LLL]

|

COLERAIN

Page 11 of 20

EST. 1794

No - None

c. Motion Authorizing Part-Time Department of Fire & EMS Hires (Fire)

Chief Cook recommended adoption of a motion to conditionally hire the following
candidates as part-time fire department employees at the specified hourly pay rates:

* Peter Lovass — Firefighter Emergency Medical Technician (EMT): $14.50 per hour,
and

* Andrew Ferrell — Firefighter EMT: $14.50 per hour.

The aforementioned recommended candidates are replacements for part-time
firefighter EMT employees that have recently separated from the department. The
hiring of the two candidates will be contingent upon successful completion of all
applicable pre-employment evaluations and procedures. Their start date will be
effective as soon as possible after Sunday, October 7, 2018, following compliance of
the aforementioned conditions with a one-year probationary period.

Dan Unger made such motion and Greg Insco offered the second. No discussion and
the roll was called:

Yes - Dan Unger, Raj Rajagopal, Greg Insco

No - None

d.  Request to Accept Donation (Police)

Dan Unger made a motion and Greg Insco offered the second to amend the agenda
for a Police Department item. No discussion and the roll was called:

Yes - Dan Unger, Raj Rajagopal, Greg Insco

No - None

Chief Denney spoke about Officer Brandon Ellis. He requested the Board approve 30
days of unpaid leave, effective when his time bank runs out. His benefits will continue
during this time.

Dan Unger made such motion and Greg Insco offered the second. No discussion and
the roll was called:

Yes - Dan Unger, Raj Rajagopal, Greg Insco

No - None

Chief Denney recommended approval of a motion to accept a donation of furnishings
from Furniture Fair valued at $1,500. Furniture Fair has donated furnishings for the
Police Department Briefing Room.

Dan Unger made such motion and Greg Insco offered the second.

Mr. Unger said it looks nice. Mr. Insco offered his thanks.




f

[T T L]
COLERAIN

EST. 1794

The roll was called:
Yes - Dan Unger, Raj Rajagopal, Greg Insco
No - None

e.  Motion Authorizing Purchase of K9 Kennel (Police)

Chief Denney recommend adoption of a motion authorizing the purchase of a K9
kennel from Law Dog Kastle in the amount of $6,500. K9 Handler Brian Huntington
is required to house and care for K9 Tao at his home when not working. Kennels are
required pieces of equipment that protect both the dog and the Township. Tao can be
housed in the kennel for several hours in a safe environment that provides shelter,
food and water. The kennel is used when Officer Huntington needs to secure T'ao
outside his home and away from other people or animals. Having a secure structure for
Tao (Township property) provides protection to the Township as well. All necessary
zoning certificates and permits have been secured and the kennel is portable should we
need to relocate it. The manufacturer has provided a sole source letter.

Greg Insco made such motion and Dan Unger offered the second.

Mr. Unger said it's great to presetve this asset.

Mr. Rajagopal asked if it's safe for winter. Chief Denney said it would be save for five
to six hours.

The roll was called:

Yes - Dan Unger, Raj Rajagopal, Greg Insco

No - None

Public Services

a.  Motion To Accept Donation

Mr. Schwartzhoff recommended a motion to accept the donation of a flood pole and
informational sign to be installed at Heritage Park. The Coleraine Historical Society is
donating a pole and signage to the Township and will be arranging a group of
volunteers to install the pole and sign. The flood pole will be of historical value for
Colerain Township and visitors to the park as it will notate the water height of the
1913 and 1959 floods. Colerain Township will maintain the pole in the future.

Greg Insco made such motion and Raj Rajagopal offered the second.

Mr. Insco said the Historical Society is amazing]

The roll was called:

Yes - Dan Unger, Raj Rajagopal, Greg Insco

No - None

Page 12 of 20




gl

COLERAIN

Page 13 of 20

EST. 1794

b.  Motion to Accept Donation

Mr. Schwartzhoff recommended approval of a motion to accept a donation of $840.00
from Peach Grove Animal Hospital. Peach Grove Animal Hospital is donating $840
for the purchase of two dog hurdles for the Dog Park at Heritage Park.

Greg Insco made such motion and Raj Rajagopal offered the second. No discussion
and the roll was called:

Yes - Dan Unger, Raj Rajagopal, Greg Insco

No - None

¢. Motion To Execute Contract With AY Mills For Senior Center CDBG Project

Mr. Schwartzhoff recommended the adoption of a motion to award contract 18-5 for
the renovation of the Senior Center to AY Mills Building who was the lowest bidder
that met the criteria set out in the bid specifications at $49,880.00. We previously
recetved a $50,000 Community Development Block Grant for renovations to the
Senior Center kitchen, restrooms, flooring, and doors. We received three quotes for
the project. The bids were reviewed by ABG Architecture who recommended that the
Township award the contract to the low bidder, AY Mills Building. The CDBG office
concurs with awarding the contract to AY Mills Buildings.

Greg Insco made such motion and Dan Unger offered the second.

Mr. Insco confirmed that the Township received three bids.

The roll was called:

Yes - Dan Unger, Raj Rajagopal, Greg Insco

No - None

d. Motion to Hire Seasonal Maintenance Worker

Recommend the adoption of a motion to hire Thomas Bosarge as 2 seasonal
maintenance worker effective September 11, 2018 at a rate of $15.00 per hour. Many
of our seasonal maintenance workers have had to return to school leaving a labor
shortage in our parks and roads divisions. Tom Bosarge had over 13 years experience
working in park facilities and has experience as a certified arborist. Tom will be
working 24 hours per week until November 16, 2018.

Greg Insco made such motion and Raj Rajagopal offered the second.

Mr. Insco said Mr. Bosarge holds a record for the most times hires.

The roll was called:

Yes - Dan Unger, Raj Rajagopal, Greg Insco

No - None




COLERAIN

EST. 1794

Planning & Zoning

a.  Resolution Declaring Nuisance and Ordering Abatement

Mrs. LeCount recommended adoption of a Resolution to remove uncontrolled
vegetation and/or refuse at the listed properties. This Resolution is recommended to
allow the Trustees to abate and assess properties with the Ohio Revised Code nuisance
violations. She read the addresses on the resolution. The resolution is 38-18,
"Resolution Declaring Nuisance and Ordering Abatement."

Dan Unger made such motion and Greg Insco offered the second. No discussion and
the roll was called:

Yes - Dan Unger, Raj Rajagopal, Greg Insco

No - None

Motion to Appoint Members of the Colerain Township Comprehensive Plan
Land Use Committee

Recommend approval of a motion to appoint the individuals listed below for service
on the Colerain Township Comprehensive Plan Land Use Committee. A total of eight
volunteer applications were received for the seven voting positions identified in the
Comprehensive Plan Land Use Committee Bylaws which were adopted by the Board
of Trustees at their regular August 2018 Board Meeting. Of the eight applications
received, only six individuals met the qualifications for appointment to the Committee.
Staff’s recommendation is to appoint the following individuals to the Comprehensive
Plan Land Use Committee:

*Neighborhood Representatives: Gary Henson, Rose Speicher, and Amanda Beckman
*Board of Zoning Appeal Representative: Thomas Reininger

*Zoning Commission Representative: Mark Fehring

*Development Community Representative: Craig Abercrombie

"This recommendation leaves one vacant position for the Pleasant Run Neighborhood
Representative. This vacant position will remain open until fill by appointment of this
Board of Trustees. The purpose of this committee is to identify appropriate land use
policies and the creation of an updated Land Use Plan to be included in the Township
Comprehensive Plan.

Dan Unger made such motion and Greg Insco offered the second.

Mr. Insco suggested the Board consider Mr. Tietsort for the vacant potion.

The roll was called:

Yes - Dan Unger, Raj Rajagopal, Greg Insco

Page 14 of 20




COLERAIN

EST. 1794

No - None

Mrs. LeCount recommended to appoint Trustee Insco as the non-voting Trustee
member of the Comprehensive Plan Land Use Committee.

Dan Unger made such motion and Raj Rajagopal offered the second. No discussion
and the roll was called:

Yes - Dan Unger, Raj Rajagopal

Abstain - Greg Insco

Motion To Set A Public Hearing For A Major Modification To A Final
Development Plan

Mts. LeCount recommended approval of a motion to set a Public Hearing for 2 Major
Modification to a Final Development Plan Case No. ZA2006-007 Triple Creek
Nursing Facility on October 9, 2018 at 7:00PM. The Colerain Township Zoning
Commission is expected to make a recommendation on the Major Modification to a
Final Development Plan for Triple Creek Nursing Facility at their September 18, 2018
regular meeting. This Major Modification would require a public hearing to be held in
front of this Board of Trustees within 30 days of that recommendation.

Dan Unger made such motion and Greg Insco offered the second. No discussion and
the roll was called:

Yes - Dan Unger, Raj Rajagopal, Greg Insco

No - None

Administration

Motion to Authorize Execution of a Contract with Judy Ann Co. Properties, LI.C
for the purchase of Right-of-Way for Banning Road Turn Lane Project

Greg Insco made a motion to table this item and Raj Rajagopal offered the second. No
discussion and the roll was called:

Yes - Dan Unger, Raj Rajagopal, Greg Insco

No - None

Resolution Determining To Intervene In Litigation Between The Board Of
b.  County Commissioners Of Hamilton County, Ohio And The City Of Cincinnati,
Ohio Over Water Rates

Mr. Milz recommended approval of resolution to intervene in litigation between the
Board of County Commissioners and the City of Cincinnati regarding water

rates. Prior to the conclusion of a 1987 contract between the Board of County
Commissioners and the City of Cincinnati related to the provision of water by Greater

Page 15 of 20




e
CO

Page 16 of 20

o

LERAIN

EST. 1794

Cincinnati Water Works, the Hamilton County Prosecutor filed for a Temporary
Restraining Order. At issue was the fact that the 1987 contract required the City and
County to enter into good faith negotiations two years before the expiration of the
contract over the price and provision of water to the ratepayers outside of the City of
Cincinnati. Hamilton County's position is that the City of Cincinnati did not negotiate
in good faith and that they were arbitrary and capricious in their determination of a rate
multiplier for township residents. As a result of the City's actions, residents in
townships throughout Hamilton County would be harmed by having to pay a great
deal more than the cost to provide the water service door-to-door.

This resolution would authorize our Law Director to join with Hamilton County in the
legal effort to protect our residents. The Resolution is 39-18, "A RESOLUTION
DETERMINING TO INTERVENE IN LITIGATION BETWEEN THE BOARD
OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF HAMILTON COUNTY, OHIO AND THE
CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO OVER WATER RATES, AND DISPENSING
WITH A SECOND READING."

Dan Unger made such motion and Greg Insco offered the second.

Mr. Unger said the City can raise the Townships' residents water rates to 1.43 times
that of City of Cincinnati residents.

Mr. Rajagopal said he is happy to see union among the townships on this. He said he
system is on the verge of financial collapse.

Mr. Insco commended Mr. Unger and Mr. Rajagopal for attending the informational
meeting.

The roll was called:

Yes - Dan Unger, Raj Rajagopal, Greg Insco

No - None

Resolution Appointing Members To The Hamilton County Water District Task
Force

Mt. Milz Recommended approval of resolution to appoint Geoff Milz and Raj
Rajagopal to the Hamilton County Water District Task Force. In parallel to to the
litigation that will attempt to protect township rate payers of the water utility from
arbitrary and capricious water rates, townships across the county are organizing a task
force to explore other options for the provision of water to township residents. The
Resolution is 40-18, "A RESOLUTION APPOINTING MEMBERS TO THE
HAMILTON COUNTY WATER DISTRICT TASK FORCE AND DISPENSING
WITH A SECOND READING."

Greg Insco made such motion and Dan Unger offered the second. No discussion and
the roll was called:

Yes - Dan Unger, Greg Insco

No - None




13.

Page 17 of 20

COL

=

L

ERAIN

EST. 1794

Abstain - Raj Rajagopal

Consent Items

Mr. Milz requested the Board approve the consent items. Greg Insco made such motion
and Dan Unger offered the second.

Mr. Unger read the items:

a. Contract with Spring Grove Cemetery for the Indigent Burial of James Delosh 2018-6
b. Contract with R.H Meyer Fence Company for the Installation of Gates at Clippard Park
2018-7

c. Contract Amendment with Hamilton County for Mobile Data Computers 2018-30

d. Contract with Healthworks for Flu Shots for Employees

Mr. Insco asked about the indigent burial. Mr. Milz said we have had eight this year, at a
cost of $700.

The roll was called:

Yes - Dan Unger, Raj Rajagopal, Greg Insco

No - None

Fiscal Office Report

Mrs. Harlow responded to Mrs. Wright's question about James Love's payments in
August. She said he was paid twice in August and not at all in July, just as a result of how
the invoices were received and the payments made.

Mrs. Hatlow asked for approval of payroll, purchase orders, and receipts. Greg Insco made
such motion and Dan Unger offered the second. No discussion and the roll was called:
Yes - Dan Unger, Raj Rajagopal, Greg Insco

No - None

The Fiscal Officer recorded receipts in August 2018, as listed in Attachment 2 to these
minutes.




COLERAIN

EST. 1794

a. Resolution to Amend the Permanent Appropriations

Mrs. Harlow requested the Board approve Resolution 41-18, "RESOLUTION
AUTHORIZING THE ADOPTION OF THE AMENDED APPROPRIATIONS
FOR THE YEAR 2018." She detailed the requested increases and decreases to the

appropriations:
Amended .
Fund ||Fund Name Increase/decrease mended. Explanation
appropriation
2003 TIF - Colerain 78.480.75 78.480.75 int_erest payment and
Towne Center estimated tax fees
TIF - Stone $8250 reduced to prior
2907 -8,126.27 1,743,705.16 year encumbrance,
Creek )
$173 estimated tax fees
Subrecipient of
= Hamilton County
2908 || CDBG 14,500.00 89,500.00 ;
Loralinda grant, board
approved 9/20/17
2910 || TTF - Best Buyl[ 700.00 || 99.311.92 |[Estimated tax fees |

Dan Unger made such motion and Greg Insco offered the second. No discussion and
the roll was called:

Yes - Dan Unger, Raj Rajagopal, Greg Insco

No - None

9. Trustees' Report

Mr. Rajagopal said improving road conditions was his goal when he got elected. He said
the County Engineer is supportive of East Miami River Road construction, which is in
awful shape. He said he has developed a plan on how to do this. He said the Township
will be a partner application with the County for an OPWC application. This will cost the
Township nothing. He thanked the volunteers who came September 1 to help clean-up
Colerain Ave.

Mr. Unger suggested everyone contact Cincinnati City Council as they control our water
rates. He said he wants to stay with Greater Cincinnati Water Works, but we shouldn't
enter into a deal with them to pay such high prices. This is unfair to the residents of the
townships. He said they are selling water to Butler County for less. He offered his thanks
to those who worked on the Eyes of Freedom memorial. He said it was very awesome,

Page 18 of 20




B

[ |

14.

Page 1g of 20

s ‘L‘-:a& o,

COLERAIN

EST. 1794

very well done.

Mr. Insco thanked Mr. Rajagopal for being so passionate about roads. He commended M.
Unger for looking out for us on the water issue. He offered this thanks for those who
worked on the Eyes of Freedom. He said he has a raffle donation for a Colerain Historical
Society. He told Brenda that nothing happens as fast as you'd like. He said he appreciated
Dusty Rhodes, acknowledging employees for agenda. He wished luck to Dale Stalf and all
local candidates. Regarding Jeff Brockhous, Mr. Insco said the development on the former
hospital property is stalled. For Tom O'Brien, and other people who are less internet
savvy, he asked if we are able to walk someone through. To Linda about the sidewalks, he
said he's all about that. To Keith Miller, he said that just because we have employees hired
by previous administration, doesn't mean they're bad. Everyone is here because we want
them here and they want to be here. He said we support our employees 10 fold. He
thanked the Donauschwaben for the tickets to their upcoming Oktoberfest. He said Jason
from Waycross is moving overseas and said he is an integral part of the community.

Mr. Insco said on May 5, Township resident, Brody was diagnosed with a very brain
cancer. A month ago, the two year old boy was given two months to live. His parents
want to move up Christmas and do something big for him. He requested the donation of
outdoor decorations. Also, Brody loves mail, so please send him a card or letter. He said

he is visiting him after the meeting, which is why he is wearing a snowman-themed suit.

Citizens Address

Kathy Mohr asked what part of Pleasant Run Farms is in Colerain.
Mr. Milz said this was an error, as it should be the Pleasant Run neighborhood.

Rachel McKinney said there was a huge bust on Brehm Road and she is eternally grateful
to the police and all other agencies involved.

Gary Henson spoke about the water rates and asked about the other resources.

Mr. Unger said we could combine with other Townships as a water district and buy water
in bulk. That's why we're looking at this.

Mr. Henson said that ODO'T is re-doing Fast Miami River Road from Blue Rock to
Harrison. He asked they are not doing the other direction because it's just as bad as the
other part.

Mr. Rajagopal said he will talk to Engineer Hubbard tomorrow. He said it's federal funding
and done section by section. He said the goal is to do all of East Miami River Road.

Mr. Unger said this area might have a lower point value because the other section might be
in worse shape.

Stephanie Wright asked if the public will be able to attend the Land Use meetings.
M. Milz said he will check.




COLERAIN

EST. 1794

Mrs. Wright said the July 24 minutes are not online. She asked who will represent us on
the water issue.

Mr. Rajagopal said it will be the County Prosecutor's office.

Mrs. Wright asked about the next meeting. Mr. Rajagopal said it will be tomorrow at 2PM,
but with no public input.

Mrs. Wright said Chris Green worked hard on the Eyes of Freedom exhibit.

Lori McMullen thanked Ryna Rajagopal for donating trophies for the fishing derby. She
said they had 72 kids. Snow cones were donated by local businesses. She said they have a
community meeting Monday.

Marlyn Ford reminded everyone that Recycling Day is September 29.
Carrie Davis asked about our legal stance on the water issue.

Mr. Barbiere said a task force not formed as was required.
Mr. Unger suggested everyone call Cincinpati Council members about this

15. Executive Session — if needed
None.
16. Adjournment

With no further business to come before the Board, Greg Insco made a motion to adjourn
and Dan Unger offered the second. The roll was called:

Yes - Dan Unger, Raj Rajagopal, Greg Insco
No — None 62 %

Fiscal Officer Trustee

3 u
=
R

T Tl .>

Page 20 of 20




Juswdojansg JiWwouolJ

JAOH

8L0¢Z ‘L1 Jaqualdag
L D

diysumo| uieiajo)

L AINJWHOVLLY
| abey



UGN HLOUEIT

JAJH

30UB)SISSY

[eunsuaidanusy

1

99O
juswdojara(

OILIOUODT]

¢OADH st jeymMm

Z abed



‘sqol 000‘yS 4910
pue juawj}saAul ui uoljjiq 2'¢$ 49A0 Ul pajjnsal
}ey) sjoaloid pajsisse sey 03 ‘Ajjes1io}siH

LEy [ ~U [T

paule}ay Jo
pajeald sqor

122°L

JUBWI}SAAU]|
jo uoljjiw Lg%

-S}NS3Y L10¢C

L HEEa 0000 O 9=
9921}JO JuawidojaAag s1wouod] HAOH

¢ obeyq



_ h__ﬁm__ﬁ ﬁ,_

il
QLArON :_ oEO

:sqofl 00001 _E_m :o____m 1$
Buijejo} paroidde m“_omi%_,?oaﬂ T UIBAQO

5.!;

.,I.w\\ta\\\

e
Buipua ssauisng 2dOH




._wwcm_,m_o wa_o>>OO Gl
wu.Cm__O doneqnod| ¢g

o_co Ul J10}eqnoU] ssauisng T#

daa,dﬂmﬁ\_\r \TT.

uoljeqnouj ssauisng 5daoH




JURLLTONBE HUOUOD

9a9H ‘(Bulojus| Bululo
pue peisyoiye ‘Jojeqnoul) woddns |jeunsuaidanuy e
110ddns Buiyoeoo pue uolsuedxe ‘Uuoiudlal ssauisng e
qua|e) pue sjuelb aoiopjom 0} saluedwod Josuuo) e
‘SO)IS [elIsSNpuUl g [BIDJSWWOD pue ‘SJoLSIp ssauisng
‘s100(04d Juswdojanapal uo Bulnsuod uadxs JaAlleg  ©
(dva3o)
yuswdo|aAnap azAjejed 0) sueoj/sjuelb apinoid  ©
‘aseq ejep Auadoud pue Bulp|ing [eloJawwod apINolHd  ©
‘swesboud
Buioueul) pue aAlUadUl ybnoly) S)s00 ssauisng adnpsy  °

B ..
juswdojaAaag dslwouod3 HAdOH

g abed



|eUOlleN

Ol4o
Ajunod

wﬁomzsﬁ

M VTG S

sajey JusawAojdwaun
— JUBWIUOJIAUT 21WIOUO097 Judlin9




VIV

A|leuolsay %T 0T

AlleuoneN %' €T

\'\\

0 . 0000000
ajey Aoueosep 99140

- JUBWIUOJIAUT 21WOoU093 JuaLing




AlleuoiBay %0°€
AlleuoneN %0°G

ajey Aoueaoe) |elpsnpuj
— JUSWIUOJIIAUT 2IWOUO023 Judiind




!w {
Alleuoisey %t
AljleuoneN %99

. : - e, !
[ - L
: = - — »lllq fJ
ot . 4 o
o * 1 5
s "
s .

ajey AoueoeA |ielay
— JUBWUOJIAUT 21WIOoU0923 jJualingd

0} abed



JUBWIO0IASQ HWOUIF

QJAOH sqol mau g pue paulelal | d G 8 14 vy Yim uoljiw g9¢  ©

dnouc poo4 NLI e
‘uoibal 8y} ul sqol paulejas 000° L UM JUBWISSAUI UOI|IW 00G$ ©

uopeIAy 39 e
sqof paulejal 009" YHM JUSWISOAUL UOI||IW 006$ ©

Auedwo?) 10jJo|\ p104 e
sqol paulejal 00 PUE MaU 000} YIIM JUBWISBAUI UOI|Iw 8F  ©

"ou|] ‘109Aeq e
Sqol mau 000' L YIM JuswisSaAUl uoljiw 0z  ©

[BqOIO MAD e
sgol mau 008‘L UM JusWwisaAul uoljiw 06$ ©

(piemy Y@30) 483ua suonesadQ [eqo|9 39 e

810¢-710¢
sjoalo.id jueoyiubig A3Junon uojjiweH

1| abeg



JUATOPANG LU0 T

JAJOH

[uso Bad ‘Juspisaid MeN e

lleH uolun ® YV 0€:8 18 y 1890100 — dOYSHIOM ©
-a1nyny oY) Jo Awouoos pue Buimolb i1seise ‘(s8jes ul uolfjiw
1 $ Jono pue seakojdwe Q0 L-|) s@ssaulsng abe)s-puooss

Uo snooj [eloads e yum sajuedwod aAeAouul spoddns DR[O ©

‘8102 Ul (D%10) Auaneald
pUE UOIIBAOUU| JO 82140 8y} pajealo AjunoD uoyjiweH/OddoH

B . 0000000 0
9AOH UNM MaN

Z| abed



JULCO[@AS( HLOUOIF

QAOH

19jua) buiuiea pooyp|iyd ogv e
Kauig yue|g juiod e

"ou] ‘ademyulyyl e

dnouc) Bunjiomie}a|y e

9de|d ulje)s e

lle|N @3ebByjioN e

‘00 19)f-se) o

sqgeT] |ejua( ljeuuidul’) 1ajealc) e
BuisiJaApy |eSIBAIUN @

001 9y e

9S|091d 9)|ON °

salsnpuj spieyoly e

T ]
pajsissy s)odafoid diysumo| uieisajon

¢l abed



JUHUTOPAB] NLOUOIF

943 H

‘Jeak ay) JO syjuow g 1sJi} ul paaoidde
sjwiad L6y UM ‘gL0Z Ul S1Iequinu Jejiwis aAey o} 8oed uQ e

*/1.0Z Ul suwlad Buipjing g1/ panssi diysumo| uleis|o) e

‘91,07 Ul sywJad Buiping 2/ / penssi diysumo] uieisjod e

T .
8102-910¢

sjiuad diysumo] uieiajo)d

1 abed



JUBWO0IBASQ MLOUOIF

"(HOSgofr/1@3y) Sa111ua JU3WdO|DAIP J1WOUO0ID J3Y10
pue salllunwWwod |BJ0] JO S1SISUO0I Yd1ym ‘|12uno) (394g)
uoisuedx3 Q@ uolUa}aY SsauIsNg 3yl PawWI0} DJIH ‘STOZ U| O

Z1duno) uoisuedx3
® UOIJUd}aY ssauisng Ajunon uojjiweH si Jeyp

L .
|Iouno9) uoisuedxy

Q UOIJUd)aY Sssauisng AJunos uojjiwey

G| abed



JUBUIIO[EAB(] JLOUOT

9d9H

sassaulsng puedx3 pue uie}oy O
‘010 ‘SUBOT/SOAIUSIU| JO BIEMY Sassauisng aye\ O
suolisioa( Adljod Janeg o
SuJ9OUO0 N ssaulsng
uo s[eyO paos|g o} buioday sAlsusyaldwo) B
sbBunes|\ ssauisng pesealou| o
Bunjoel| ¥ uoljeuiploo) b
:[I9UNO09 3y} 10} S|eon
s
[1IouUno ) uoisuedx3
© UoIjuUalay ssauisng AjunoH uojjiwey

9| abed



uosiel] Ajunon o

sallladold a|ge|leAy pui{ ©
Sjuelc) — 9JUB)SISSY 92I0JYIOAN\ O
SUBO™

10 spuog }Inpuo) yum sjoalouad 4oy buioueur4 o
SaAljUadU

xe} Ajadoud |eas ybnouyj s1so0) ssauisng aonpay O

:s9ssauisng d|oaH ap\ MOH jo sajdwexyg

L DU
jusawdojaAag 21wouod3 HaoH

L1 abed



JUAWTO[RAS(] HLOUDD

9a9H

suolnlpuod 1ybi|q Jo/pue wni|s
JO [BAOWAI JO BaJe SWO09U| 8)elapowl 0} MO| e
Ul S8ssaulIsng pue sjuapisal buauaq salinbey «

810Z 10} 000'00.$ Alolewixoiddy ©

syoalold JuswdojaAasp 2IWOUOIS 0} uoljeso|e
5gad9 Jo uoilod e pajeubisap Ajuno) uojjiweH o

e D
(dva3o) weuaboud asue)sissy

juawdojaAa d1wouody] R Ajunwwo)

g| abed



JUWTO0IBAI(] MLOUODT

ssuonsanp

- D
uoiejuasald DAOH

61 abed



JuRd0PABY] NWauodJ

LUOD " OPIY MMM
2628-1€9 (€16)
212Gy HO ‘leuuduly
ONUBAY IOJUBIN 9/ /1
oul “OAOH

w09 opoymuolue|qy
Juapisald 99IA ‘uojuelg AleH
w02 opoyPp|elabziyo
1010841 Joluag ‘plelabzyi4 suusyie)

0z ebed



81 INF - ONIDTADIHIdNIS| 2 L2S 0000-¢68-0001 ONITOADIHITJWIS 810¢-809
81 ONY - TYLNIH|00°0L1LE 0000-¢08-0001 JOHIANNOD 40 SHIFWVHO NIvd310D 8102-£09
S$334 ¥OLIAnNy NI a3L1031100|8€££6°291% 0000-6€£5-0001 HOLIANY ALNNOD NOLTIWVH 'S3A0HY ALSNd 2102-909
SANN4 SS30X3 0L 3INA ALNNOD WOHL SNTdYNS v3d
HddA ‘'S334{00°064% 0000-20¢€-L8Le ININIHVHIA DONINOZ dIHSNMOL NIvH310D 810¢-609
Hd4A ‘S334|00°005% 0000-L0¢€-L8LE LINIWLHVLIA ONINOZ dIHSNMOL NIVHITOD 8102-509
$334{00°6E$ 0000-20E-18le LINIWLHVYLIA ONINOZ dIHSNMOL NIVHIT0D 8102109
$334|S0°L% 0000-268-0001 INIFNLEYJIA ONINOZ dIHSNMOL NIVHIT10D 810¢109
$334|00°00L% 0000-20g-L8le INIWLHYJIA ONINOZ dIHSNMOL NIVE310D 810¢-€09
$334{00°€$ 0000-268-000L ININLEYdIA ONINOZ dIHSNAMOL NIVE3IT10D 810¢-£09
107 ANNOJWI|00 LSEvS 0000-20g-1802 ININLHY4IA 3D110d dIHSNMOL NIVE3T10D 810¢-209
$334|00°652% 0000-20¢-1 L 12| LNIWLYVYd3d SW3 ® 3did dIHSNMOL NIVH3T10D 8102-109
101 ANNOdWI|SL 7EES 0000-¢0g-1802 ININLHEYdAA 3D170d dIHSNMOL NIVE3100 810¢-009
107 ANNOJNI|02'G6L$ 0000-20g-1802 IN3IN1HEVYdIA 3D170d dIHSNMOL NIVE3T10D 810Z-66%
INNIATH SINT|89°6.L% 0000-20¢-1822| LNINLHVd3A SW3 ? FdId dIHSNMOL NIVE3T10D 8102-865
INVHO O3AH 'aSTIMN|EZ EL8'6S €050-268-180¢ 1ININ1HVJIA 30170d dIHSNMOL NIVE3T10D 810¢-266
1INYHO O3AH ‘ASTMN|BY EFS LS 0000-268-1802 IN3IWLHEVYHIA FD1T0d dIHSNMOL NIVEET10D 8102-L6S
$334|00°022% 0000-20g-1812 AINIWLHEYHIA ONINOZ dIHSNMOL NIVE3ITOD 8102-965
$334|09°9% 0000-268-0001 AININLHEYHIA ONINOZ dIHSNMOL NIVE3T00 8102-96G
SIVLNIY TIVH|S2 €828 6620-¢08-¢2L62 H31N3ID ALINNWWOD dIHSNMOL NIVH3T10D 8102-48S
1071 ANNOJWI1|00°L9E°2S 0000-20¢€-180¢2 INIWLEYJIA 30110d dIHSNMOL NIVE3T100 8102-6986
$334|00°6e$ 0000-20¢-LLLZ] ANIWLYEVYH3IA SW3 R 3did dIHSNMOL NIVH3T0D 810Z-¥8S
TNEA ‘Hd4A ‘'S334|00°006% 0000-66£-18L2 ININLHVYDIAd ONINOZ dIHSNMOL NIVHIT10D 810c-€8G
INEA “"d4A 's334[00°60LE 0000-20¢-18Le INIWLHYLIA ONINOZ dIHSNMOL NIVH310D 8102-€8G
TNEA “dd4A 'S334|00°000°LS 0000-L0g-18LE 1INIWLHYdIA DONINOZ dIHSNMOL NIVE3TO0 8102-£86
$334|00°6€% 0000-20¢-18LC INIWLEVYJIA ONINOZ dIHSNMOL NIVH3T0D 810¢-28G
$334|S0°1% 0000-268-0001 ININ1LHYHIA ONINOZ dIHSNMOL NIVH3ITOO 8102-28S
$334|08°19% 0000-20g-+1L12| LNIWLEVL3A SINT B 3HId dIHSNMOL NIVH3T0D 810¢2-18%
8l AVIN - S334 ONIddIL[82'G95% 1010-Z0€-0001 Q3LVHOdHOONI ‘FLSYM IHdNNY 8102085
81 ONVY - TYLNIH|0000G°L$ 0000-208-0001 Q3LVHOdHOOINI ‘TLSVYM IHdNNY 810¢-99%
asodind junowy apo9 JUNo2dY aoinog # 1diaoay

¢ INJWHOVLLVY




INIWITLLIS ILVLIST TV 2102 2TvH aNZ|0E082'6S 0000-L04-2062 HIHNSVIHL ALNNOD NOLTINVH 8102-529
INIWITLLIS 31VY1S3 VIS 2102 41VH aNzZ|rL 6Ly 002$ 0000-L0L-c062 HIHNSVIHL ALNNOD NOLTIWVH 8102-929
LINIWITLLIS 31V1ST W3 2102 41vH aNg|0L'990°L$ 0000-109-L0t2 HIHUNSYIHL ALNNOD NOLTINVYH 8102-6G29
LINIWITLLIS T1V1ST VI 2102 4vH ONZ|LE628°L68S 0000-L0L-LLLE HIHNSVYIHL ALNNOD NOLTINVH 8102-929
LINIWITLLIS JLV.LST TvId £L0Z 4TvH ANZ|68'€2£'865% 0000-101-1802 HIHUNSYIHL ALNNOD NOLTINVH 810¢-6¢29
LINIWITLLIS J1VLIST TvIY LL0Z 4IVH ANZ|€9'€60'CLLS 0000-10L-1L€0Z H34NSYIHL ALNNOD NOLTIAVH 8102-629
LINIWITLLIS J1VIST TvIH £10Z 4TvH ANz | PP 8LL6LS 8100-268-0001 HIFNSYIHL ALNNOD NOLTINVYH 8102-629
INIWILLIS 31VLST VI 2102 4TvH aNZ|90°€88°98S 0000-10L-000L HIHNSVIHL ALNNOD NOLTINVH 8102-529
IVLNIS HILT13HS|S06ELS 66£0-208-L1L6¢C S3IDINGTS ® SHEVC dIHSNMOL NIVHIT0D 810e-+29

v3q|0826L°2$ 0000-¢68-1802 INIWLEVHAA 3D170d dIHSNAMOL NIVH310D 81L02-€29

107 ANNOdINI| 00 0vZ$ 0000-20e-1802 INIWLHVJIA 3D170d dIHSNMOL NIVHITOD 8102-229

107 ANNOJINI|00°626°LS 0000-20€E-180¢ IN3IWLHVH3AA 30170d dIHSNMOL NIVE3100D 8102-129

8190/ ANI ‘81629 ANI|L6°€08°9% Z050-268-1802 LEVINTYM 8102-029

JOVHYD IONYNILNIVIN|08 GLPS 6Z00-268-1 12| LNIWLHYL3IA ST ® 14 dIHSNMOL NIvVH3100 8102619

v3a|se'602'2% G0G0-268-192¢¢ INIWLEVYd3A 30110d dIHSNMOL NIVHE310D 8102819

v3qa|8eeracis 6050-¢68-19¢¢ ININLHYd3A 301T0d dIHSNMOL NIVEIT10D 810¢-£19

39HVYSOE - SWNIW3Yd £L0-8102 YHIOD|87 699% 0000-268-0001 ONI ‘30ENOSINIANI 8L02-919
$334|00°6E$ 0000-¢0g-L8Le ININLHVHIAA DNINOZ dIHSNMOL NIVH3I10D 8102-G19

g334|50°L$ 0000-268-0001 1ININLEVHIA ONINOZ dIHSNMOL NIVH3T100 8102-619

1017 ANNOJWI|0Z Lt2$ 0000-Z0¢-1802 LINIWLEVJIA 30IT0d dIHSNAMOL NIVHITOD 810219

107 aNNOdW|00°0L1'E$ 0000-20€-1802 IN3INLEVYH3A 30110d dIHSNMOL NIvH3100 810C-€L9

SNOILYNOQ B SINI4|00°04LS 0000-10v-LL22 1ININLEVYH3A 3D1T0d dIHSNMOL NIVHITOD 8102-¢L9

SNOILYNOQ % S3ANI4|00'9LLS 0000-10v-192¢2 LNIWLHVYd3A ID1N0d dIHSNMOL NIVHIT10D 810¢-¢l9

SNOILYNOQ ® S3INI4|00°06L% £050-108-1802 LNIWLHVYLIA IDIN0d dIHSNMOL NIVHIT10D 8L02-¢L9

SNOILYNOA ® S3NIF|051L82$ 0000-L0v-1802 LNINLHVYLIA I0IM0d dIHSNMOL NIvVHI10D 8102-2L9

ISIA B ‘'STYLNIY ¥3L13HS 'STVLNTY T1vH{008$ 2220-268-Clee SHEVd ? 0D dIHSNMOL NIVH310D 8L02-1L19
DSIAL R ‘'STVLNIH HILTIHS ‘SIVINIY TIVH|05 L5F'SS 6620-¢08-¢cl62 SHHVYd ® 00 dIHSNMOL NIVE3T100 8L02-119
ISIN B ‘STVLINIY HILTIHS ‘STVINTIY TIVH|E6EL0'LS £0€0-268-L 162 SMHVd B 00 dIHSNMOL NIVY310D 8L0¢-L19
ASIN ® ‘STVLINTH HILTIHS ‘STVLINIY TIvH|00°GELS 66€£0-208-1 162 SHEVd 8 00 dIHSNMOL NIvd3100 8102119
gL INr - SANIE LHNOD|GL LEL'ES 0000-L0v-L802 HOLIaNY ALNNOD NOLTIWYH ‘S3A0HY ALSNd 810¢-019

$334[00°009% 0000-c0g-i8LeE INIWLHYHIAA ONINOZ dIHSNMOL NIVEIT0D 8102-609

g334/008L$ 0000-z68-0001 INIWLHYHIAA DONINOZ dIHSNMOL NIVH3IT10D 8102-609




£28r8'cs 0000-9€S-1102| HOLIANY ALNNOD NOLTIWVYH ‘S3A0HY ALSNad 81L02-2¥9

8L-1Nr-IH3A HOLOW

‘BL-ONY 3SIOXI SVYO 'AMOH LAOD T¥I01 ' LNINITddNS/4D
6£'688'9¢$ 0000-2£5-000L HOL1dNY ALNNOD NOLTINYH ‘S3A0HY ALSNd 810¢-¢¥9

8L-INM-IH3A YOLOW

8L-ONY ISIOXT SYD 'AMOH LAOD TWIO01 'INIWIT1ddNS/491
00'99%'L¥$ 0000-¢65-1€22| HOLIANY ALNNOD NOLTIWVH 'S3A0OHY ALSNa 8L02-L¥9

AINC-ALNNOD 2 dML JAW IAISSINYId
IVLNIY|S06ELS 66€0-208-1 162 S3IOINHETS ® SHEVC dIHSNMOL NIVH3IT0D 8102-0v9
IVLINIH|GL'S2S 66£0-208-1162 S3DINYTS B SHYVC dIHSNAMOL NIVEIT10D 8L0Z-6£9
IVO3IYL68Z 334/00°GES 0000-20€-L8Le INIWLHVYH3A ONINOZ dIHSNMOL NIVEHITOD 8102-8¢€9
IWO3IHL68Z 334(|G0°LS 0000-268-0001 ANIWNLHVdIA ONINOZ dIHSNMOL NIVEHIT0D 8102-8€9
107 aNNOJdINI|06°879% 0000-¢0g-1802 1INIWLHVYH3A 3D1M0d dIHSNMOL NIVHIT0D 8102-L£9
SLINYId MOY ‘NOILYNOQ 'STv.LNIH|00°26% 222072682162 S3DINY3S 2I18Nd dIHSNMOL NIVHIT0D 8102-9¢9
SLINYId MOY ‘NOILYNOQ ‘'STV.LINIH|0000¥ LS 6620-208-¢cl6C S3DINY3S DIM8Nd dIHSNMOL NIVE3T100 810¢-9¢9
S1INE3d MOY ‘NOILYNOQ ‘STVINIM|00'5vES 66€0-208-L 162 S30INY3S 21T9Nd dIHSNMOL NIVHE3T0D 8102-9¢€9
SLIWY3d MOY ‘NOILYNOQ ‘STVLININ[00'GLS 0000-¢68-1£0C S3DIAH3S 2178Nd dIHSNMOL NIVE3100 8102-9€9
107 aNNOdWI|00826°L$ 0000-20€-180¢ INIWLHV43A 30110d dIHSNMOL NIYE310D 8L02-S£9
MIIATH NV 1d|00°05% 0000-20€-LLLZ| LNIWLHVHIA SINT ¥ JdId dIHSNMOL NIVHIT0D 8102-+€9
JOvHINO|EL6.8'CS 0000-268-1802 1INIWLHYH3A 3DI10d dIHSNMOL NIVHIT0D 8102-€€9

ONIddIHS- ANNH3Y “VIMA TV.INIH ¥ISINYD 'LNVHO OIAH
LUVINTYM 9G61-91 |Gt err'es 2050-268-1802 ININ1LHEVH3A 3D170d dIHSNMOL NIVEI10D 8102-¢€9
LINE3d MOH(|SPSLS 0000-268-L£02 SHHOM 2179Nd dIHSNMOL NIVE3T10D 8102-1€9
107 ANNOJNI|04'G61$ 0000-z0g-180¢ IN3IWL¥Yd3A 30170d dIHSNMOL NIVE3TO0 8102-0€9
NOSTIM §222-334 ddV vZa[|05'€E$ 0000-z0g-18lC ININLHVYH3A ONINOZ dIHSNMOL NIvHIT0D 8L02-629
NOSTIM G222-334 ddV vZg|00'L$ 0000-268-0001 INIWLHVYJIA ONINOZ dIHSNMOL NIVY310D 810Z-629
107 ANNOdNI|00°509% 0000-¢0€-1802 INIWLHYH3A 3D1710d dIHSNMOL NIVY3I109 8102-829
1O ANNOdINI|S6799% 0000-20€-1802 INIWLHVHIA FOI10d dIHSNMOL NIVE3TOD 810e-L29
S334 11SA (334 934 a3SO1D3IN0-4|00°008+S 0000-66¢€-L8L2C INIWLHVH3IA ONINOZ dIHSNMOL NIVE3100 8102-929
S$334 ISA 334 934 d3S0103H04|00°62L°2$ 0000-20¢-L81e AINIWLEVYd3A ONINOZ dIHSNMOL NIVE3T0D 8102-929
$334 ISA ‘334 934 3ISO1D3IH04|00°005% 0000-L0g-181LE ININWILHYHId ONINOZ dIHSNMOL NIVE3IT0D 810¢-92¢9
INIWITLL3S F1VISI VIS £102 4TVH ANZ|29890°05% 0000-L0L-0L6Z d3IHNSVYIEL ALNNOD NOLTWVH 8102-529




DS R 'STY.LNIH Y3 LTIHS 'STYLINIH T1VH 00'0.2% 66€0-208-L 162 SHEVd ‘0D dIHSNMOL NIVEIT100 8L02-¥S9

ASIN 2 ‘STYLNTH ¥IL1IHS 'STY.LNIH TIVH 0F'982°L% 0000-268-2062 SYHVd ‘0D dIHSNMOL NIVHIT00 8L0Z-1¥59

SIVLINIY ¥3L13AHS 00°SELS 66£0-208-L 1L6¢C SIDIAHITS ¥ SHHV dIHSNMOL NIVHITOD 8102-€59

SIVINIH TIVH 00'GLGS 6620-208-CL62 HILNTD ALINNWINOD dIHSNMOL NIVHIT0D 8102-259

S1IN"3d MOY SF'GL$ 0000-¢68-LE02 SHHEOM 21718Nd dIHSNMOL NIYH3100 8102-159

$334(00°€01L$ 0000-z0S-1 1 12| ININLEYd3a SN 8 3dId JdIHSNMOL NIYE3T100 8102-059

§334(00°05% 0000-20g-L8Le INIWLHEYAIA ONINOZ dIHSNMOL NIVHIT00 810¢-6¥9

$334(0S°L$ 0000-268-0001 1NIWLIHYdIA ONINOZ dIHSNAMOL NIYE3100 8102-6¥9

00°05% 0000-268-1€£02 dIHSNMOL NIVY3102 8102-8¥9
SLNVI-NAMOLNI ‘8LTINPNAOLNI B L3dHVYOd XYL ONIOAO
‘SLNNM-S334 IOVNNOL INdWNY J4NHT-ALNA AdNC ani3d

1628Z'0EL$ 1010-20€-0001L dIHSNMOL NIVY3102 8102-8¥9
SLNYI-NMOLNI ‘8L TNPNMOLNI 8 13dHv0d XVL ONISA0T
‘BLNNM-S334 IOVNNOL INdWNY 44NHM-ALNA AYNr aWIEd

82'6.6'C% 0000-£01L-0001 dIHSNMOL NIVH3IN0D 8102-8¥9
SLNYI-NAOLNI ‘8L TNFNAOLNI B 13d¥Y0d XYL ONIOJO
‘LNAM-S334 IOVNNOL INdWNY (44NHM-ALNAd ANl NI

1INN3d MOY B TVLINIH 00'sel$ 66£0-208-L 162 SIADIAYIS B SHHVC JdIHSNMOL NIVHITOO 8102-L¥9

LINY3d MOY ® TV LININ St'GlLS 0000-268-LEDC SIADIAEIS B SHEVC JIHSNAOL NIVH3T100 8102-L¥9

(g1/21/8) WY3IHLSI 11g3d v.8.%- 0000-20€-18zz| ININLHVYJ3IA SW3 '8 3HId dIHSNMOL NIVH310D 8L02-9¥9

g810z/L2/2 NYHL INNIATHE SW3 08'59r'L2L$ 0000-20£-1822| LNIWLHVYLIA SN B FHId dIHSNMOL NIVE3T10D 8102-9¥9

107 ANNOdNI|00°06.$ 0000-20g-1802 INIWLHEVYLIA 3D1T0d dIHSNMOL NIYY3T00 8102-6¥9

YOMA B LNVHO O3AH 95'0/6'2% 0000-¢68-1802 INIWLHY43A 32110d dIHSNMOL NIvVH3IT0D 8L02-¥¥9

YOMA B LNVHD O3AH 00952°2$ 0000-208-1802 INIWLHYLIA 3D170d JIHSNMOL NIYH3100 810Z-+v9

MIIATH NYId 00'G.% 0000-20€-1112Z| LNIWLHYJIA SN ® TFuld dIHSNMOL NIVE31700 8L02-€v9

8Z'0r0'8¢$ 0000-L£5-120C HOLIaNY ALNNOD NOLTIWVH 'S3a0HY ALsSNd 8102-¢v9

8L-1Nr-IH3A HOL10W
'81L-9NY ISIOXI SYO 'AMOH LAOD TWI0T - ANIWT1ddNS/4D7T




107 ANNOJINI|€9°L22S 0000-20g-L802 AINIWLHEVYd3A F01N0d dIHSNMOL NIVH3T00 8L02-£€89

v3q|0£'869°L$ 0000-268-180¢C ININ1HVYdIA 301T70d dIHSNMOL NIVEIT0D 8102-949

1INVHO DIAID|88790L'8% 0000-268-0001 AD3INAC 810¢-649

810z AINr|cecless ¥0S0-268-1802 12141S1d T00HOS W20 LSIMHLHON 810219

$33d4 ISIHONVYS-BLOZ|59LZL'8LLS 0000-£0€-0001 SNOILYIINNWIWOD H3LHVHD 8102219

aNNZ3d NNIWTYd Y¥3[20+eLS 0000-268-000L YNVINNH 8102149

INGA “HddA ‘S334|00°008°L$ 0000-66¢-1L8L¢C INIWLHVYJIA ONINOZ dIHSNMOL NIYE310D 8102-699

INGA “HddA ‘S334|00°061% 0000-¢c0e-L8Le ININLEVHIA ONINOZ dIHSNMOL NIYHITOD 8102-699

TNGA “HddA ‘'S334]|00°005°L$ 0000-10€-L8LE AININLEVH3A ONINOZ dIHSNMOL NIVEHIT0D 8102-699

L0717 aNNOdINI|00°085% 0000-¢0¢-180Z 1ININLHEVd3A 3D1T0d dIHSNMOL NIVE3100 8102-899

1017 ANNOJdWI|S9'89F$ 0000-20g-1802 ININLEYL3A 30170d dIHSNMOL NIVE3T0D 810¢-499

¥d4A 's334|00°0¢6% 0000-20g-18Le AININLHVYdIA ONINOZ dIHSNAMOL NIVEIT0D 8102-999

¥ddA 'S334|00°000°L$ 0000-L0E-L8LE ININLHEVYJIA ONINOZ dIHSNMOL NIvE3I100 8L02-999

$334|00°GELS 0000-Zog-L8Le LININWLHVYJ3A ONINOZ dIHSNMOL NIYE310D 8102-999

$334|50°FS 0000-¢68-0001L LNIWNLEVIA ONINOZ dIHSNMOL NIVHIT0D 8102-999

INNOWY 3TVYS a31v2IN1dnal00'€0Ls- 0000-20g-181¢ ININLHVdIA ONINOZ dIHSNMOL NIYE3100 810Z-+99
$334/|00°6€2% 0000-zoe-L8le ININLHVYLIA ONINOZ JdIHSNMOL NIVE3T0D 810¢-+99

s334|S0'L% 0000-¢68-0001 INIWLHEYdIA ONINOZ dIHSNMOL NIVEIT0D 810¢-+99

SLINY3d MOYH|SPSLS- 0000-¢68-L€0C SHHOM 2179Nd dIHSNMOL NIVE3T10D 810¢-€99

S1INE3d MOH|SP'SLS 0000-268-1£0¢2 SMHOM 2178Nd dIHSNMOL NIVE3ITOD 8102-£99

OSIN HIHLO '8LO0ZLANI LYVINTYA|00'GLE'ES €050-268-180¢ LHVINTIVYM 'ad dIHSNMOL NIVEIT10D 810Z-299
OSIN "¥3HLO '8L0ZLANI LHVINTYM|00'LS 0000-268-1802 1HVINTVYAM ‘ad dIHSNMOL NIvE3100 8102-299
$334|00°005% 0000-20€-L 112 LNINLHVYHIA SINT ? T4 dIHSNAMOL NIVEI10D 8102-199

DSIN B S334(00°682% 0000-coe-L8lZ ONINOZ ‘NINAY dIHSNMOL NIvd3102 8102-099

DSIN % S334/00°62% €010-¢68-0001 ONINOZ ‘NINAY dIHSNAMOL NIYH310D 8102-099

2SIN ® S334|08°0L% 0000-¢68-0001 ONINOZ ‘NIWAV dIHSNMOL NIYd3100 810¢-099

INN3IATY SWI|8CCLO'YS 0000-20€-1822| LNINLHVHIA SIWT B FHI4 JIHSNMOL NIVEIT0D 8102-659

107 aNNOdNI|0L'G6LS 0000-20¢-180¢ 1IN3IN1EVJ3A 301M0d dIHSNMOL NIVE310D 8102-859

107 aNNOdNI|SL LIPS 0000-20g-180¢ LNIN1HVd3A 3D170d dIHSNMOL NIVEIT100 8102-499

107 aNNOdWI|00°L0Z'+$ 0000-20g-L80C 1ININLHV4IA FO1T0d dIHSNMOL NIVH3T102D 8102-959

8L ATNC - LNYHD YOD|9€7°695'2$ 22¢0-268-Z16¢C ONIOV NO 7IONNOD 8102-559

OSIN ® ‘STVLINIY H3LTIHS ‘STVINIY TIvH|SF 0ELS £220-268-z1l6T SHHYd "00 dIHSNMOL NIVE3102 8102-¥59
OSIN % "STVINIY HILIIHS 'STVLINTH 11vH|00°00S° LS 6620-208-Z162 SHHVYd "00 dIHSNMOL NIVY310D 8102-+59




11°2¢£°'2€8'2$ anuaAsy [e10]
SONINYVI 1SIH3LNI|GP 6083 0000-104-L€22 INIWLSIANI 8102-€69
SONINYYI LSIHILNI[BBESS LS 0000-L04-120¢ LINIWLS3IANI 810¢-€69
SONINYVI 1S3431NI|evE6LS 0000-104-1 102 INIWLSIANI 8L0¢-€69
SONINYYI 1SI4TILINI|98'85€°058 0000-10£-0001 ANIWLSIANI 8102-€69
1S343LNI|06'FLS 0000-L04-LEC2 A¥VYINIEd 8L02-269
18343 INI|SL 6% 0000-104-1202 AYYINIEd 8102-269
1STYILINI|9SES 0000-1L04-110¢ AHVIAIE 810¢-269
1STHILNI|EL 226$ 0000-L0£-0001 AdVINIEd 8102-269
SIVANTH TIvH|05 L6529 6620-208-2L62 HILNID ALINAWIWOD dIHSNMOL NIVEIT0D 8102-689
INNIATIH SIW|S090L9¥$ 0000-20¢-1822| LNINLHVLIA SW3 ® 3dId dIHSNAMOL NIvd310D 8102-889
vaq|0e'e6L'Ls 0000-268-180¢C INIWLHYJ4IA 32170d dIHSNMOL NIVH3T00 8102-489
1071 ANNOdWI|SY 22v$ 0000-20€-1802 INTIWLHYL3A 3D1T0d dIHSNMOL NIvVH3T00 810289






